
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
The Democracy Service 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Andrea Woodside 
 

Email: andrea.woodside@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Friday 25 October 2019 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Personnel Committee 
 

The Personnel Committee will meet in the Leadership Meeting Room  - 1st 
Floor, Civic Centre 3, Huddersfield, HD1 2TG at 1.00 pm on Monday 4 
November 2019. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

The Personnel Committee members are:- 
 

 
When a Personnel Committee member cannot be at the meeting another member can 
attend in their place from the list below:- 
 
 

Substitutes Panel 
 
Conservative 
N Patrick 
B Armer 
M Thompson 
V Lees-Hamilton 
R Smith 

Green 
K Allison 

Independent 
T Lyons 
C Greaves 

Labour 
M Sokhal 
S Hall 
A Butt 
E Hill 
M Kaushik 
W Simpson 

Liberal Democrat 
A Pinnock 
A Munro 
 

Member 
Councillor Shabir Pandor (Chair) 
Councillor Graham Turner 
Councillor Susan Lee-Richards 
Councillor Naheed Mather 
Councillor Peter McBride 
Councillor John Taylor 
Councillor David Hall 
Councillor John Lawson 
Councillor Rob Walker 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 

  Pages 
 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 
This is where Councillors who are attending as substitutes will say 
for whom they are attending. 
 

 

 

2:   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 1 July 2019. 
 

 
 

1 - 2 

3:   Interests 
 
The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

3 - 4 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 
Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 
 

 
 

 

5:   Deputation/Petitions 
 
The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public.  
 
A deputation is where up to five people can attend the meeting and 
make a presentation on some particular issue of concern. A member 
of the public can also hand in a petition at the meeting but that 
petition should relate to something on which the body has powers 
and responsibilities. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation.   
 

 



 

 

 
 

6:   Public Question Time 
 
The Committee will hear any questions from the general public. 
 

 
 

 

7:   Dying to Work Charter 
 
To consider the report. 
 
Contact: Deborah Lucas, Head of People Services 
 

 
 

5 - 8 

8:   Update - Senior Management Arrangements 
 
To consider the report.  
 
Contact: Deborah Lucas, Head of People’s Services  
 

 
 

9 - 16 

 
 



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Andrea Woodside  
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 

Monday 1st July 2019 
 
Present: Councillor Graham Turner (Chair) 
 Councillor Susan Lee-Richards 

Councillor David Hall 
Councillor John Lawson 
Councillor Rob Walker 

  
Apologies: Councillor Shabir Pandor 

Councillor Naheed Mather 
Councillor Peter McBride 
Councillor John Taylor 

 
1 Membership of the Committee 

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Mather, McBride, 
Pandor and J Taylor. 
 
In the absence of Councillor Pandor, the Committee determined that Councillor 
Turner be appointed as Chair for this meeting of the Committee. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the Meetings held on 14 March and 22 May 2019 
be approved as correct records. 
 

3 Interests 
No interests were declared.  
 

4 Admission of the Public 
It was noted that all Agenda Items would be considered in public session. 
 

5 Public Question Time 
No questions were asked.  
 

6 Deputation/Petitions 
No deputations or petitions were received. 
 

7 Revised Employee Relations Framework 
The Committee received a report which provided an update on revisions to the 
Council’s Employee Relations Framework and sought approval for the deletion of 
Employee Relations Sub-Committee.  
 
The Committee were advised that a review of the effectiveness of the previous 
framework had been undertaken and that the outcomes had highlighted that the 
framework was too complex and lacked clarity with regards to consultation, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Personnel Committee -  1 July 2019 
 

2 
 

negotiation and decision making. Consequently, the revised framework had been 
developed jointly between People’s Services, trade union representatives and the 
Cabinet Portfolio Holder and was based upon a standard model which is used 
across a range of other local authorities.  
 
The report advised that the new framework, which was attached at Appendix 2 of 
the considered report, was modern and transparent, provided clarity regarding 
arrangements for engagement with trade unions at a local, directorate and corporate 
level and aimed to create a process of inclusion and collaborative working with trade 
unions. It was noted that, as a result of the framework, there was no longer a 
requirement for Employee Relations Sub Committee to remain constituted and the 
Committee were therefore asked to support the deletion of the Committee.  
 
 
RESOLVED - That the revised Employee Relations Framework be endorsed and 
that a report be submitted (i) to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee on 5 
July 2019 recommending the deletion of Employee Relations Sub-Committee and 
thereafter (ii) to Council on 17 July 2019 recommending a constitutional amendment 
to delete Employee Relations Sub Committee. 
 
 

Page 2



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
 

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

CarolineBateman
Typewritten Text

CarolineBateman_1
Typewritten Text

CarolineBateman_2
Typewritten Text
Personnel Committee



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 4



1 
 

 

 
 

Personnel Committee  

Date: 4th November 2019 
 

Dying to Work Charter 
 

Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

No 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? No 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny? No 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
 
 
Is it signed off by the Service 
Director – Legal, Governance 
and Commissioning 
(Monitoring Officer)? 

Rachel Spencer-Henshall 
 
22nd October 2019 
 
Julie Muscroft 
 
24th October 2019 

Cabinet member portfolio Cllr Turner – Corporate  
24th October 2019 

 

Electoral wards affected: None 

 

Ward Councillors consulted: 
None 

 
Public or private: Public 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/ForwardPlan/forwardplan.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/scrutiny/Scrutiny.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/cabinet/cabinet.asp
http://www2.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/councillors/yourcouncillors.asp


2 
 

1. Purpose  
 
The purpose of this paper is to set out the background to the Dying to Work 
Charter, explain the impact of the Council signing up to this Charter and seek 
approval to formally adopt the Charter.   

 
2. Decision required 

 
The Personnel Committee is asked to consider the Dying to Work Charter, 
including the proposal that the Council extend our supportive approach beyond the 
core Charter to include employees who are dealing with a close relative with a 
terminal illness.  

 
3. Background 

 
The Trade Unions approached the Council earlier this year with a request that we 
consider signing up to the TUC Dying to Work Charter. The Charter sets out a 
commitment that the employer will support, protect and guide employees 
throughout their employment, following a terminal diagnosis.  
 
The Council as an employer already has established guidance, practice and a 
supportive culture when managing complex ill health issues; the signing of the 
Dying to Work Charter is therefore an affirmation of our collective approach as a 
supportive employer and will not require any policy changes. 
 
 

4. What is the Dying to Work Charter? 
 
The Dying to Work Charter sets out an agreed commitment and approach to how 
our employees will be supported, protected and guided throughout their 
employment, following a terminal diagnosis. A copy of the Charter is at Appendix 1. 
 
Over 250 employers, covering over half a million employees, have already signed 
up to the Charter. These employers include Leeds City Council as well as all ten 
Greater Manchester Councils, plus the Greater Manchester Combined Authority.  

 
 

5. Implications for the Council 
 
Kirklees Council policies and procedures are already supportive in terms of dealing 
with employees with a terminal diagnosis e.g. we would not pursue a dismissal in a 
long term absence case where this was for the reason of terminal illness and we 
would only consider a termination of contract where this was something requested 
by the individual affected. Our approach is to provide proactive support and access 
to programmes through Employee Healthcare, including access to counselling, 
specialist clinical services, legal and financial advice. 
 
Signing the Charter will not change our approach but it will serve to increase 
awareness for employees who may have concerns now or in the future and 
reinforce our reputation as a caring, kind and supportive employer of choice. 

Page 6



3 
 

In addition to supporting employees with a terminal illness, we propose that our 
commitment goes beyond the Charter to extend that support to employees dealing 
with close family members with a terminal illness. If approved, we will develop and 
provide guidance and support to managers on how to deal with affected employees 
in this situation e.g. offering flexible working arrangements, signposting staff to 
access support via to Employee Healthcare, etc. 

 
6. Next steps 

 
If supported, there will be a communication plan to raise awareness of the Dying to 
Work Charter throughout the organisation. This will be followed by an official 
signing opportunity, involving senior managers, political leaders and Trade Union 
colleagues and will be accompanied by an official photograph, press release and 
information being uploaded onto the Dying to Work website 
https://www.dyingtowork.co.uk/ 
 

7. Recommendation 
 
That Personnel Committee approves the Dying to Work Charter 

 
8.  Contact Officer 

 
   Deborah Lucas, Head of People Service 
 

9.  Strategic Director responsible 
 
Rachel Spencer-Henshall, Strategic Director for Strategy, Commissioning and Public 
Health 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

https://www.dyingtowork.co.uk/


4 
 

Appendix 1 

 

Page 8



1 
 

 

 
 

Personnel Committee  

Date: 4th November 2019 
 

Update on Senior Management Arrangements 
 

Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

No 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? No 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
 
 
Is it signed off by the Service 
Director – Legal, Governance 
and Commissioning 
(Monitoring Officer)? 

Rachel Spencer-Henshall 
 
22nd October 2019 
 
Julie Muscroft 
24th October 2019 

Cabinet member portfolio Cllr Turner – Corporate  
24th October 2019 

 

Electoral wards affected:  

None 

 

Ward Councillors consulted: 
None 

 
Public or private: Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8

http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/ForwardPlan/forwardplan.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/scrutiny/Scrutiny.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/cabinet/cabinet.asp
http://www2.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/councillors/yourcouncillors.asp


2 
 

1.       Purpose of report 
 

1.1 To receive an update from the Strategic Director for Corporate Strategy, 
Commissioning and Public Health on changes to senior management 
arrangements. 

 
1.2 To seek approval to increase the establishment of Service Directors by 

one full-time equivalent role and to agree to convene a member 
appointment panel to recruit to the new role. This new role will be 
focused on Customers and Communities and bring together a number 
of functions that are currently managed in different parts of the Council.  

 
1.3 To note the reconfiguration of existing adult social care Service Director 

capacity to create one role covering mental health, learning disabilities 
and in-house care services given the increased pressure in this area 
and the agenda on integration. 

 
1.4 To agree to the temporary extension of the existing two part-time 

Service Director roles in adult social care that are due to expire in 
December 2019; these extensions are to ensure leadership stability and 
capacity remains whilst the above change is worked through and an 
external recruitment exercise is undertaken. In addition, the Committee 
is asked to agree to convene a member appointment panel to recruit to 
this reconfigured role.  

 
1.5 This report builds on the reports to Personnel Committee of 29th October 

2018, 30th July 2018, 25th April 2018, 13th February 2018, 18th 
December 2017, 19th September 2017 and 25th January 2017. 

 
 

2.        Update on Senior Management Recruitment 
 
2.1 Following an external recruitment exercise and the subsequent internal 

promotion of an existing Service Director into the role of Strategic Director for 
Corporate Strategy, Commissioning and Public Health, the portfolio for the 
vacated role was reviewed and reconfigured to that of Service Director 
Strategy and Innovation. This reconfiguration was to strengthen capacity 
around the development and delivery of corporate planning and strategy and 
to bring an innovative approach to transformation across the organisation. 
Following an external recruitment process overseen by a panel of elected 
members, a successful candidate was appointed to that role in May of this 
year. 

 
2.2 At around the same time, the role of Service Director for Environment was 

also subject to an external recruitment exercise overseen by a member 
panel and an individual commenced in role in June of this year. 
Unfortunately, the individual tendered their resignation within a few months 
of commencement and the role is currently being readvertised. Pending the 
outcome of that recruitment exercise, which is being overseen by a panel of 
members, an interim Service Director has been appointed to ensure effective 
leadership is maintained across this area. 

Page 10



3 
 

3 Proposed changes 
 
3.1 Within the current Adults and Health Directorate, there is increasing pressure 

on the provision of mental health, learning disabilities and in-house care 
services as well as a pressure on integration. The proposal is therefore to 
reconfigure two part-time Service Director roles which are on fixed term 
contracts into a single new Service Director role that is focused on the 
aforementioned areas. The role will be funded from within existing budgets 
and it is proposed that an external, member led recruitment exercise to fill 
this role is undertaken at the earliest opportunity.  Given the timescales 
relating to senior recruitment processes, including notice periods, it is 
unlikely that a successful candidate will be in post for at least six months.  As 
part of the portfolio for this role, a new Head of Service for the regulated in-
house care services will be created; this reflects the risks that this set of 
services present as the needs of service users become ever more complex 
and the regulatory framework is ever more demanding. 

 
3.2      There are currently a range of customer facing and community functions and 

services that sit across the organisation, under a variety of leadership 
arrangements. Some of these (libraries, customer services, community plus 
etc.) are managed by an existing part time Service Director whose contract 
expires in December 2019.  Given the benefits that will be derived from 
bringing these services together with other front facing services such as 
Communities, it is proposed to create a new full time Service Director for 
Customers and Communities that covers this broader portfolio to replace the 
existing part time role.  This will enable a real focus on these services 
working together to achieve the best outcomes for our residents.  This role 
will have a matrix management arrangement and be accountable to a 
number of Strategic Directors as it will deliver outcomes across the Council, 
including for vulnerable children, adults and families as well as putting into 
operation the place based working approach.  An external, member led 
recruitment exercise to fill this role is proposed and this will process will 
commence as soon as possible; it is noted, however, that taking into account 
the recruitment cycle including notice periods, any successful candidate is 
unlikely to be in post for at least six months.   

 
3.3 It is therefore proposed that the two existing part time Service Directors have 

their contracts temporarily extended from December 2019 to provide 
transitional cover until the successful candidate commences in role. 

 
3.4 The above changes also reflect the recommendations from our peer 

challenge in relation to increased leadership capacity, building on the 
community plus model as well as creating an environment where we are able 
to share posts between strategic directors in order to best facilitate 
collaborative working. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



4 
 

4. Other changes 
 
4.1 Given the significant programme of work within the Economy and 

Infrastructure Directorate, a decision has been taken to transfer the 
responsibility for KNH to the Strategic Director for Adults and Health; this will 
enable the Strategic Director for Economy and Infrastructure to focus on the 
town and village regeneration schemes, the work to re-procure the waste 
contract and the redesign of operational services.  

 
4.2 The alignment of housing with adult social care is relatively common and 

reflects the positive contribution that a good housing offer can make to 
increase the independence of people who need social care.  To reflect the 
move and highlight the importance of this housing function being integrated 
into the Adults and Health directorate, it is proposed that the directorate is 
redesignated to “Adults, Housing and Health”.  

 
4.3 A copy of the revised senior management structure which includes the 

proposals set out in this report is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
5. Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation 
 
5.1 There is no specific Portfolio Holder recommendation 
 
6. Officer recommendation  
 
6.1 The Personnel Committee is recommended: 
 

 To note the update from the Strategic Director for Strategy, 
Commissioning and Public Health on recent and proposed changes 
to senior management arrangements; 
 

 To approve an increase to the establishment of Service Directors 
by one full-time equivalent and to agree to convene a member 
appointment panel to recruit to the new role. This new role will be 
focused on Customers and Communities and bring together a 
number of functions that are currently managed in different parts 
of the Council. The composition of the member panel will be a 
ratio of 3:1:1. 
 

 To note the reconfiguration of existing adult social care Service 
Director capacity to create one role covering mental health, 
learning disabilities and in-house care services given the 
increased pressure in this area and the agenda on integration. The 
Committee is also asked to agree to convene a member 
appointment panel to recruit to this reconfigured role. The 
composition of the member panel will be a ratio of 3:1:1. 

 

 Support the contract extensions for the two part-time Service 
Directors to ensure adequate capacity during the transitional 
period. 

Page 12



5 
 

7. Contact officer  
 
Deborah Lucas, Head of People Service 

 
8.  Strategic Director responsible 
 

Rachel Spencer-Henshall, Strategic Director for Strategy, 
Commissioning and Public Health 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Proposed Senior Management structure June 2020 subject to recruitment 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

Strategic Director 
Economy & Infrastructure 

Karl Battersby 

Service 
Director 

Environment 
 
 
 

Vacant 
(Sue Proctor – 

interim) 

Service 
Director 

Economy, and 
Skills 

 

 
Angela  
Blake 

Chief 
Executive 

Jacqui Gedman 

Service Director 
Finance  

 
S151 Officer 

 

Eamon  
Croston  

Strategic Director 
Adults, Housing & Health 

Richard Parry 

Service 
Director 

Customers 
and 

Communities 
 

 
NEW 

Service 
Director Child 
Protection & 

Family 
Support 

 

Elaine 
McShane 

 Service  
Director   
Learning 

Disabilities and 
Mental Health 

 

 
RECONFIGURED 

 
 
 
 

Service  
Director 

Learning & Early 
Support 

 

 
Jo-Anne  
Sanders  

 

Service Director 
Governance & 
Commissioning  

 
Monitoring 

Officer  
 

Julie  
Muscroft 

Head of 
Assessment and 
Intervention and 
Disabled children 
Service 
Christine Bennett 

 
Head of 
Assessment & 
Intervention and 
Duty and Advice 
Charlotte Jackson 
 
Head of 
Corporate 
Parenting  
Julie Bragg  
 
Head of 
Safeguarding and 
Quality Assurance 
(Principal Social 
Worker) 
Ophelia Rix 
 
Head of 
Safeguarding and 
Quality Assurance 
Sara Miles 
 
 

Head of 
Educational 
Outcomes  
Harkireet 
Sohel  

  
Head of 
Localities 
Offer for 
Children and 
Families 
Vacant 
 
Head of 
Inclusion and 
Educational 
Safeguarding  
Ronnie Hartley  
 
Head of Early 
Help 
Michelle 
Wheatcroft 

Head of 
Communities 
and strategic 
VSC Support 
Carol Gilchrist 

 
 
Head of 
Community 
Plus + local 
integrated 
delivery 
models 
Jill Greenfield 
 
Head of 
Access 
strategy and 
Delivery  
Dave 
Thompson 

 
Other Heads 
of Service 
TBC 

 

Head of 
Operations 
North/South 
(Assessment and 
Care 
Management, 
hospitals 
Gateway to care, 
re-ablement etc.) 
Simon McGurk 
(North) 
David 
MacDonald 
(South) 
 
 

Head of Service 
Transformation 
Activity (0.5 FTE) 
Debra Mallinson  
 
Head of Quality 
Standards & 
Safeguarding  
Saf Bhuta  
 
 

Head of Major 
Projects 
Richard 
Hollinson 
 
Corporate 
Landlord and 
Capital  
David Martin 

 
Head of 
Business and 
Skills 
Chris Dufill 
(November 
2019) 

Head of 
Operational 
Services 
Will Acornley 
Waste, parks, 
open spaces, 
highways, 
streetscene etc. 
 
Head of Public 
Protection 
Wendy Blakeley 
 
Head of Venue 
Management 
Jenny Frear 

Head of 
Finance and 
accountancy 
(Chief 
Accountant) 
James 
Anderson 
 
Head of 
Commercial 
Services 
Phil Deighton 
 
Head of 
Revenues and 
Benefits 
Steve Bird 

 

 
Head of 
Learning 
Disabilities and 
Mental Health 
Michelle Cross 
 

 
Head of In-
House 
Provision 
New 
 
 

Head of People 
Services 
Deborah Lucas  
 

Consultant in 
Public Health 
Emily Parry-
Harries 

 
Head of Health 
Protection 
Jane O’Donnell 
 
Adviser to the 
Chief Executive 
Gary Rae  
(to 31/3/2020) 
 
 
------------------------- 
 
Council Business 
Manager 
Richard Farnhill 

 
 

Head of Intelligence 
and Performance 
Mike Henry  
 
Head of Strategic 
Communications 
Mark McAdam 
 
Acting Head of IT 
Terence Hudson 
 
Head of 
Transformation 
and Culture Change 
Clair Ashurst-
Bagshaw 
 
Head of Policy, 
Partnerships and 
Corporate Planning 
Kate McNicholas 
 
 

 

Head of Legal 
John Chapman 
 
Head of 
Procurement 
and 
Commissioning 
Support 
Jane Lockwood 
 
Head of Risk - 
Internal Audit, 
Insurance and 
Risk 
Management 
Martin Dearnley 
 
Head of 
Democracy  
Carl Whistlecraft 
 

Strategic Director 
Corporate Strategy, Commissioning 

and Public Health 
Rachel Spencer-Henshall 

 
(acting up) 

Service 
Director 

 

Growth and 
Housing 

 
Naz  

Parkar 

Head of 
Development 
and Master 
Planning 
Simon Taylor 
 
Head of Culture 
& Tourism 
Adele 
Poppleton 
 
Head of 
Housing 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
Adele Buckley 
 
Head of 
Housing 
Services 
Helen Geldart 

Strategic Director 
Children and Families 

Melanie Meggs 
 

Service 
Director 

Strategy & 
Innovation 

 
 

Andy Simcox 

Chief Operating 
Officer - KNH 

Joanne Bartholomew 

Service 
Director  

Resources, 
Improvement 

& Partnerships 

Tom 
Brailsford 

(seconded)  
 

Service 
Director 
Adults 

Social Care 
Operation 

 

 
Amanda 

Evans 

Head of 
Corporate 
Parenting 
(with 
responsibility 
for 
Sustainability, 
Capacity and 
Resourcing) 
Steve Comb 

 

Service 
Director 
Adults 

Sufficiency 
 

Temporary 
transition 
Part time 

Head of 
Market 
Development 
& Sufficiency  
Simon Baker  
 
 
 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Interests
	7 Dying to Work Charter
	8 Update - Senior Management Arrangements
	Appendix




